Cambridgeshire County Council Education Capital Procurement Options
Background and scope of the Education capital programme
1.  Programme Focus
1.1 The majority of the schools’ capital programme is generated in direct response to the statutory requirement to provide sufficient school places to meet demand.

1.2 The Council operates a five year rolling revenue budget, and a ten year rolling capital programme. The very nature of capital planning necessitates alteration and refinement to proposals and funding during the planning period; therefore whilst the early years of the Business Plan provide robust, detailed estimates of schemes, the later years only provide indicative forecasts of the likely infrastructure needs and revenue streams for the Council.
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1.3 To help with budget setting, prior to a project being agreed or placed within the education capital programme, the Council requires a full multi-disciplinary team to develop a feasibility (RIBA stages 0-2). In all cases the client team brief and manage the consultants and contractors, and also oversee the involvement of representatives from the Council’s Strategic Assets Service, LGSS Finance and LGSS Law Limited.

2. Current approach to capital delivery

2.1  The Council currently operates a Design & Build (D&B) model of procurement to deliver its large-scale, major capital projects.  In 2017 the Council procured its own two stage D&B Contractors Framework.  The framework will run for a four year period until late spring 2021. Pre-construction services are provided by the contractors under the NEC Professional Services Contract, which are then subsumed into the Engineering and Construction Contracts NEC3 Contract from RIBA Stage 5 onwards.  The Lots and Bands of the framework are as follows:
· Lot 1:  £1m - £2.99m
· Lot 2:  £3m - £6.499m
· Lot 3:  £6.5m - £9.99m
· Lot 4:  £10m - £14.99m
· Lot 5:  £15m+

2.2  The Council does not “Direct Award” from the D&B Framework. The strategy is to continually challenge and strive for Best Value by utilising a first stage tender process issued to all contractors within the Lot in which each project sits determined by the Budget.

2.3  Broadly speaking the milestone stages will run in parallel to the RIBA Plan of Work 2013. The table below provides an indication of the projects milestones.
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3.  Future procurement options
3.1  Because the existing D&B framework comes to an end in late spring 2021, Cambridgeshire must turn its attention to what procurement delivery options are available into the future.  To help us with our work around this we would like to seek contributions from contractors across the market.  We have set out a series of questions below that will help us to achieve this, so would be very grateful if you could complete these and return to us by noon on Monday 6th July.
Questions to existing framework contractors and to the wider market:
	a) General questions - 
Have you participated in and/or delivered a construction project via the Crown Commercial Service, Scape, Pagabo or DfE school building frameworks?  If the answer is yes, please specify which frameworks below and answer the questions i-ii.  If the answer is no, then please go to question iii. 
List frameworks here:


	i. What do you consider to be the strengths and weaknesses of such an arrangement? (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	ii. Are there any frameworks in which you participate that you regard as particularly successful and why is that?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iii. What would you describe as the advantages and disadvantages of a local authority running its own framework?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iv. What do you see as the main challenges/risks facing the construction sector over the next 4 years, and which procurement strategy can most effectively mitigate these?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	v. Which future arrangements could best deliver the change and innovation required to meet the policy agenda relating to the climate emergency (zero carbon etc.) and how? (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)




	b) Procurement and Contract Options - 
i. In your opinion is, single stage or two stage tendering preferable and why? (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	ii. If any given framework provided the option to use either the NEC or JCT contract forms, would you view this as beneficial?  Do you prefer one contract form over another, and if so why?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iii. In your opinion, for any given framework, what is the best way to set the Lot bandings?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iv. Cambridgeshire County Council also operate a Minor Works Framework (which is a based on the JCT MW contract, using a single stage tender process), which has a value of up to £5m.  Do you think there is any merit in merging the bands from a design & build framework with the Cambridgeshire Minor Works Frameworks?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	v. How can a local authority led framework be further developed to support local businesses and employment opportunities?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)




	c) Framework Process Improvements - 
Commercial
i. How can value for money be delivered at 1st and 2nd stage tender?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	ii. How can contractors demonstrate that value for money has been achieved in the current framework and how could that be improved in a new framework?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iii. What would the implications be of transferring more risk to contractors?  I.e.  in the same way that the DfE JCT D&B contract does.  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	Design
i. How could the link between pre-construction and construction stage design be improved during the milestone process?  E.g. Continuity of design management.  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	ii. In an environment where we need to be flexible about design (i.e. s106 funded vs Council funded or s106 funded based on score card rates)[endnoteRef:1], how can defining the scope and specification of the projects be improved?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words) [1:  Cambridgeshire adopt a Cambridgeshire specific Design Guide for s106 funded projects, and use the DfE Output Specification for local authority funded projects.] 



	iii. How do we best deal with Policy and Legislation changes during the course of the Framework and, in particular:
1. CCC policy on the climate emergency 
2. DfE and/or CCC Design Guides
(please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)


	iv. Because of the large and diverse programme that Cambridgeshire has to manage, the current framework arrangement means that there can be disparities between the services required and provided, with some contractors doing more and some doing less e.g.  s106 funded projects providing new schools involve engaging with developers/utilities/other 3rd parties to the contractor.  What do you think would the implications be of transferring all responsibility for this engagement to contractors as part of any new framework arrangement?  (please restrict your response to no more than 250 words)
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